
AGENDA 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
April 28, 2020 

1:00pm 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

B. DELEGATIONS

a) 1:00 pm Sam Scholfield, Pincher Creek and District Chamber of Commerce, Business
Continuity Plan

C. MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes
- April 14, 2020

2. Council Meeting Minutes
- April 14, 2020

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
a) Waterton Springs Campgroup Update (no report included, will be presented verbally)
b) Castle Parks/Livingstone Porcupine Recreation Advisory Group (no report included, will be

presented verbally)
c) PCCELC (no report included, will be presented verbally)

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
- Library
- EMS
- ASB Minutes March 4, 2020

2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3

- Alberta Southwest
- FCSS

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4
5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Report
- Capital Budget Summary, dated April 23, 2020
- PW Call Log, dated April 23, 2020

2. Development and Community Services

a) AES Departmental Update
- Report from Agricultural Fieldman dated April 23, 2020

3. Finance

a) 2019 Financial Statements
- Report from Director of Finance dated April 23, 2020

b) Funding for Recreation Study with Town of Pincher Creek
- Report from Director of Finance dated April 23, 2020

AdminExecAsst
Highlight

AdminExecAsst
Highlight



 
4. Municipal 

 
a) Chief Administrative Officer Report  

- Report from CAO, dated April 22, 2020 
 

H. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. For Action 
 

2. For Information   
Recommendation to Council, dated April 23, 2020 

a) Childcare Opening in Pincher Creek 
b) ORRSC Executive Minutes February 13, 2020  
c) Government of Alberta Announces COVD-19 Matching Donation Program 
d) ORRSC Ministerial Order 036/20 

 
I. CLOSED MEETING SESSION 

 
J. NEW BUSINESS 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 



Pincher Creek – Business Recovery Support Program (BRSP) 

Small business is the backbone of our community.  

COVID-19, the impact on human lives, and business has been catastrophic. While the government focus is 
largely on stopping the virus and protecting against the loss of lives, at a local level our focus can be on our 
business community. In Canada, the majority of business is under 5 employees.  

We need to act now to help our businesses and ultimately our communities. We know from our Business 
Support Survey conducted in March that over 40% of our businesses are short on cash flow and need help 
with maneuvering the government programs.  On a regional basis, (Okotoks and south) over 50 to 55% of the 
businesses do not qualify for any of the provincial or federal business support processes. We need a 
customized recovery plan.  

What we are launching on a Local Leve is a Business Recovery Support Program.  The 
Goal:
The Town in partnership with the Chamber of Commerce to provide a unified approach to SUPPORT Town and 
MD businesses in recovery.  

Short-term: 2020 - 2021 

1. Complete a Business Needs Assessment – Business Advisory Services Voucher: Phase 1

2. Launch #LoveLocalPC Campaign

3. Provide Ask an Expert – Business Advisory Services Voucher: Phase 2

Long-term: 2021 - 2022 

4. Bridging to an Entrepreneurial Ecosystem: Develop a plan for developing and supporting a resilient
entrepreneurial ecosystem

Please note – additional detail on each phase will be provided during our presentation. 

B



  

 



Council Committee Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 
April 14, 2020 

MINUTES 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
Tuesday, April 14, 2020 10:00 am 

Via Virtual Meeting  

Present: Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Quentin Stevick, Bev 
Everts, and Terry Yagos. 

Staff: CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland 
Milligan, Director of Operations Aaron Benson, Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, and 
Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order, the time being 9:00 am. 

1. Approval of Agenda

Councillor Quentin Stevick

Moved that the agenda for April 14, 2020 be approved as presented.

Carried 

2. Livingstone Porcupine Recreation Advisory Group

Reeve Brian Hammond and Councillor Bev Everts discussed the changes to the
Livingstone Porcupine Recreation Advisory Group and directed Administration to reach
out to our partner Administrations in the MD’s of Willow Creek and Ranchland on how
best to work with this advisory group and see if there are common interests and or issues
or concerns that we could voice as a region.

3. Closed Session:

Councillor Bev Everts

Moved that Council move into closed session to discuss the following, the time being
9:14 am:

a) 2020 Revised Budget & Property Tax Discussion Part 3 – FOIP Section 23
b) PCCELC Discussion – FOIP Section 17
c) CAO Performance Review – FOIP Section 19

Carried 
Councillor Terry Yagos 

Moved that Council open the Committee Meeting to the public, the time being 10:50 am. 

Carried 

C1



Council Committee Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 2 
April 14, 2020 
 
4. Update for Council on COVID-19  
 

DEM Brett Wuth attended the meeting at this time to discuss with Council an update on 
the COVID-19 situation.  
 

5. Adjournment  
 

Councillor Terry Yagos 
 
Moved that the Committee Meeting adjourn, the time being 11:44 pm. 
 
       Carried 



MINUTES  9269 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
APRIL 14, 2020 

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, 
April 14, 2020, at 1:00 pm, via Virtual Meeting.  

PRESENT Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Quentin Stevick, Bev 
Everts, and Terry Yagos 

STAFF CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland 
Milligan, Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, Director of Operations Aaron Benson and 
Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order, the time being 1:00 pm. 

a) ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Rick Lemire    20/132

Moved that the Council Agenda for April 14, 2020 be amended to include:

Finance 
a) 2020 Budget

New Business 
b) CAO Performance Review
c) Pincher Creek Community Early Learning Center

And that the agenda be approved as amended. 

Carried 

B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES

1. Council Committee Meeting

Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/133

Moved that the Minutes for Council Committee Meeting on March 24, 2020 be amended to
correct the spelling of “adjournment”,

AND THAT the minutes be approved as amended.

Carried 

2. Council Meeting Minutes

Councillor Bev Everts    20/134

Moved that the Minutes for the Council Meeting on March 24, 2020 be approved as
presented.

Carried 

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

C2



9265 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
April 14, 2020 
 
F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS 

 
1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1 

a) Pincher Creek Regional Library 
b) Emergency Services Commission 
c) Chinook Area Regional Library System  

2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2 
a) Emergency Advisory Committee  

3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3 
a) Livingstone Porcupine Recreations Advisory Group  
b) Family and Community Support Services  
c) Pincher Creek Food Bank 
d) RMA Conference Call 
e) Agricultural Services Board  

4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4 
a) Joint Health and Safety 
b) Regional District of East Kootenai Meeting 

5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5 
a) Emergency Advisory Committee  

 
Councillor Terry Yagos    20/135 
 
Moved to accept the Committee Reports and information. 
 

Carried 
 

Eric Blanchard called into the meeting at this time to discuss the Public Works Call Log, and left 
the meeting at 1:46 pm. 

 
G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS  

 
1. Operations  

 
a) Operations Report  

 
Councillor Bev Everts   20/136 

 
Moved that Council receive for information the following Operations 
documents. 
 

• Capital Budget Summary, dated April 9, 2020 
• Public Works Call Log, dated April 9, 2020  

 
Carried 

 
2. Development and Community Services 

 
a) AES Report for March 2020  

 
Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/137 
 
Moved that Council accept the AES Report for March 2020 as information. 
 

Carried 
 

  



9266 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
April 14, 2020 
 

b) MD Enhanced Police Officer Report 
 

Councillor Terry Yagos   20/138 
 
Moved that Council accept the MD Enhanced Police Officer Report for March 2020 as 
information.  
 

Carried 
 

3. Finance 
 

a) 2020 Budget  
 
Councillor Rick Lemire   20/139 
 
Move that Council adjust the approved 2020 operating budget to support rate payers through 
the economic hardship of COVID-19 by maintaining the tax rate from 2019; 
 
AND THAT the municipal tax levy be amended from $11,868,575 to $11,281,275; 
 
AND THAT the tax penalty be reduced by $16,000; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the budget be amended to balance by an operational savings of 
$603,300 as presented. 
 

Carried 
 

b) 2020 Tax Rate Bylaw  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   20/140 
 
Moved that Bylaw 1319-20, being the Bylaw to authorize the rates of taxation for 2020, be 
given first reading. 
 

Carried 
 

Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/141 
 
Moved that Bylaw 1319-20, being the Bylaw to authorize the rates of taxation for 2020, be 
given second reading. 
 

Carried 
 

Councillor Bev Everts    20/142 
 
Moved that Bylaw 1319-20, being the Bylaw to authorize the rates of taxation for 2020, be 
presented for third reading. 
 

Carried Unanimously  
 

Councillor Terry Yagos   20/143 
 
Moved that Bylaw 1319-20, being the Bylaw to authorize the rates of taxation for 2020, be 
given third and final reading. 
 

Carried 
  



9267 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
April 14, 2020 
 

c) Changes to the 2020 Tax Penalties 
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/144 
 
Moved that Council waive the tax penalty for outstanding taxes on July 2, 2020 and reduce 
the November 1, 2020 penalty to 2%.  
 

Carried 
 
d) Changes to the 2020 Utility Penalties  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos     20/145 
 
Moved that Council waive all penalties associated with utilities from April 20, 2020 to 
December 31, 2020. 

 
  Carried  

    
4. Municipal  

 
a) Chief Administrative Officer Report  

 
Councillor Rick Lemire  20/146 
 
Moved that Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer’s 
report dated April 9, 2020. 
 

Carried 
 

H. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. For Action 
 
a) Request for a Council Resolution Supporting an Interagency Preplan Exercise at Castle 
Resort   
 
Councillor Quentin Stevick   20/147 
 
Moved that Council approve the proposed Castle Preplan Interagency Exercise by Pincher 
Creek Emergency Services Commission, this exercise will involve using resources from 
adjacent jurisdictions to set up structure protection for Castle Resort, the University of 
Lethbridge site, Camp Impessa, and Beaver Mines. 
 
      Carried  
 
b) Request for Partnership with Shootin the Breeze  
 
Councillor Bev Everts    20/148 
 
Moved that administration be directed to contact Shootin the Breeze for further input on the 
MD partnering with the local paper.  
 

Carried 
 

2. For Information 
 

Councillor Rick Lemire   20/149 
 
Moved that a letter be sent to STARS, with copies sent to the CAO’s of our neighboring 
Municipalities, advising that as circumstances with the COVID-19 pandemic have changed 



9268 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
April 14, 2020 
 

our practices, we are able to reallocate resources and move the airport snow removal up in 
priority.  
 

Carried 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos   20/150 

 
Moved to receive the following as information: 

 
a) Local and Regional Emergency Resources  
b) Changes to Landfill Operations During COVID-19  
c) ICF Letter from Town to Municipal Affairs  
d) Community Foundation: Announcing a shift in our granting programs 
e) AltaLink’s Chapel Rock to Pincher Creek Area Transmission Development 
f) Artist Project Update 
g) Food Bank Situational Update 

Carried 
I. CLOSED SESSION 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Changes to Scheduled Events  

 
Councillor Quentin Stevick    20/151 
 
Moved that to keep with proper social distancing, and recommendations from the Province on 
numbers of people in groups, that Council cancel previously arranged events: 
 

• Coffee with Council Lundbreck (May 7) 
• Beaver Mines Clean up (May 9) 
• Coffee with Council Summerview (June 11) 
 

Carried 
 

b) CAO Performance Review  
 

Administration was directed to draft a letter for Reeve Brian Hammond to sign.  
 

c) Pincher Creek Community Early Learning Center (PCCELC) 
 

Councillor Rick Lemire    20/152 
 
Moved that administration prepare an Agreement between the MD of Pincher Creek and the Town 
of Pincher Creek which clearly identifies that any financial contribution towards the Capital Costs 
of constructing the Pincher Creek Community Early Learning Center facilities at St. Michael’s 
School and Canyon School would be a vested interest in the value of that capital property. That is 
to say that if such a contribution were to be one quarter of the capital investment required, then the 
MD’s ownership interest in that property would be one quarter of the capital value of that 
property. 

Councillor Quentin Stevick requested a recorded vote: 
 

In Favor:   Opposed: 
Councillor Bev Everts Councillor Quentin Stevick 
Councillor Rick Lemire  
Councillor Brian Hammond 
Councillor Terry Yagos 

 
       Motion Carried 

  



9269 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9  
April 14, 2020 
 

 
Councillor Rick Lemire    20/153 

 
Purposed an amendment to the above agreement with the Town for the Pincher Creek Community 
Early Learning Center be for up to 25% investment in the Capitol costs. 

Councillor Quentin Stevick requested a recorded vote: 
 

In Favor:   Opposed: 
Councillor Bev Everts Councillor Quentin Stevick 
Councillor Rick Lemire Councillor Terry Yagos 
Councillor Brian Hammond 

 
       Motion Carried 

I. ADJOURNMENT  
 
Councillor Terry Yagos    20/154 

 
Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 3:50 pm. 
 
       Carried 
 
 

 
 

              
     REEVE 

 
 

       
      CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



Meeting Minutes 
of the 

Agricultural Service Board – Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
March 4, 2020 – MD Council Chambers 

Present: Councillors Quentin Stevick, and Terry Yagos and Members Anna 
Welsch, David Robbins, and Frank Welsch. 

Also Present: CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community 
Services Roland Milligan, Agricultural Fieldman Shane Poulson, and 
Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Absent: Councillor Bev Everts and Martin Puch 

Frank Welsch called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm.  

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Quentin Stevick      20/031 

Moved that agenda be amended to include: Gift Card for Environmental Technician 

AND THAT the agenda be approved as amended. 
Carried 

B. MINUTES

Anna Welsch 20/032 

Moved that the minutes of February 5, 2020 be amended to reflect that David Robbins was in 
attendance and Frank Welsch was not; 

AND THAT the minutes be approved as amended. 
Carried. 

C. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

Councillor Quentin Stevick 20/033 

Moved that as the gift card originally purchased for the Environmental Technician was to the 
now destroyed Grill Restaurant, that administration be authorized to purchase another gift card 
for a value of $75. 

Carried 

D. ASB KEY CONTACT REPORT

David Robbins       20/034 

Moved that the oral report from key contact Bradley Smith be received as information. 

Carried 

F1



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes  
March 4, 2020 

Page 2 
 
E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
F. 2020 AES DEPARTMENT REPORT 

 
Councillor Terry Yagos     20/035 

 
Moved to accept the departmental report from the Agricultural Fieldman for February 
2020 as information. 

 
Carried  

 
G. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. FOR ACTION 
 
a) Pest and Nuisance Control Regulation - Fusarium 

 
Anna Welsch      20/036 
 
Moved that the Pest and Nuisance Control Regulation be received as 
information. 
 

Carried 
 

2. FOR INFORMATION 
 

a. Prairie Cover Crop Survey 
 

Anna Welsch      20/037 
 
Moved that the Prairie Cover Crop Survey be shared an the MD’s social media 
sites; 
 
AND THAT it received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
b. Invitation to attend March 12th Native Trout Stakeholder Workshop 

 
David Robbins     20/038 
 
Moved that the Invitation to attend March 12th Native Trout Stakeholder 
Workshop be received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
 
 



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes  
March 4, 2020 

Page 3 
c. Modernizing the Alberta Shelterbelt Management Program 

 
Anna Welsch      20/039 
 
Moved that the Modernizing the Alberta Shelterbelt Management Program be 
received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
d. Working Well - spaces available for spring 2020 workshops 

 
Councillor Terry Yagos    20/040 
 
Directed administration to look into hosting a Working Well Workshop for 
residents in the MD of Pincher Creek. 
 

Carried 
 
e. Getting Into Retail  

 
Anna Welsch      20/041 
 
Moved that the Getting into Retail event be received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
f. Time to Recycle those Empty Grain Bags in Alberta 

 
David Robbins     20/042 
 
Moved that the Time to Recycle those Empty Grain Bags in Alberta be received 
as information. 
 

Carried 
 
g. Waterton Biosphere Reserve Newsletter  
 
Anna Welsch      20/043 
 
Moved that the Waterton Biosphere Reserve Newsletter be received as 
information. 
 

Carried 
  



Agricultural Service Board Meeting Minutes  
March 4, 2020 

Page 4 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Copy of ASB Budget Comparison 
 
Anna Welsch        20/044 
 
Moved that the ASB Budget Comparison be received as information. 
 

Carried 
 
I. NEXT MEETING 
 
Moved that the next ASB meeting is on Wednesday, April 1, 2020 at 1:30 pm.  
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councillor Terry Yagos      20/045 
  
Moved to adjourn the meeting, the time being 2:32 pm. 
 
         Carried 
 
 
 _____________________________  ________________________________ 
 ASB Chairperson    ASB Secretary 



G1a













MSI Projected Cash Flow Summary 
Opening Ba la nce as of December 3 1, 2019 

2020 Projects 

Lundbreck Pave and Drainage (3rd street) 

RR29-3 (North of 507 East, to Tower Road) 

Soutbfork Hill 

Bridge File # 66 13 Cabin Creek 

Bridge File #7235 Scottons 

Security System 

Tota l MSI Outflow 2020 

2020 Estimated MSI Allocation 

Projected Balance as at December 31, 2020 

202 1 Proj ects 

Soutbfork Hill 
Maycroft Road (12.6km) 

Total MSI Outflow 2021 

202 1 Estimated MSI Allocation 

Projected Ba lance as at December 31, 2021 

2022 Projects 

Southfork Hill 
Gladstone Valley Road (9 km) 

Maycroft Road (12.6km) 

Total MSI Outflow 2021 

2022 Estimated MSI Allocation 

Projected Balance as at December 31, 2022 

(I 95,000) 

(150,000) 

(40,000) 

(698,000) 

(948,000) 

(85,000) 

(1,072,000) 

(50,000) 

(85 1,250) 

(40,000) 

(700,000) 

5,850,000 

(2, 11 6,000) 

800,000 

4,534,000 

(1, 122,000) 

800,000 

4,2 12,000 

{1 ,59 1,250) 

800,000 

3,420,750 



2020-04-23

40 NAME PHONE NUMBER DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH 
NUMBER 

CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UP
DATE

COMPLETION DATE

1558 Division 1 SW36 T4 R30 W4 - Re getting an approach built Developer waiting on agreement with 
Development Officer

18-Apr-18 - -

1617 Division 1 West Kerr - Corner need attention MD's most dangerous area Erik/Aaron/Roland To meet w/Russell 30-May-18 Met Nov 7 Defered June 2020

1643 Division 4 SW22 T7 R1 W5 - Would like a culvert put in to solve water problem Eric/Bob M To be scheduled 26-Jun-18  inspected site Dec.10 Defered to May 2020

1982 Division 2 - - The old Reed Pit needs to be reclaimed Aaron/WSP On the list 27-Jun-19 Talked w/colony Jan 08 2020 -

1995 Division 2 NW23 T5 R29 W4 #5313 Wetland/shoulder of road & drainage problem Eric Blanchard Engineer to look at
2020 Project 

16-Jul-19 November 1, 2019 Defered to May 2020

2014 Division 3 NW3 T6 R2 W5 - Culvert  smashed Bob Millar  On list to do  29-Jul-19 October 2019 Defered to August 2020

2058 Division 1 NE3 T5 R29 W4 - Needs existing approach widened for Super B's Eric Blanchard To be done 9-Sep-19 October 16
followup 

Defered to May 2020

2074 Division 4 A/P road n.of Cowley - complaining of big rocks on road needs proper 
gravel pounded down 

Eric/Brian On to do list 23-Sep-19 October 2019 Defered to June 2020

2134 Division 5 SE16 T8 R2 W5 - RQ to have a cattle guard removed from MD Road 
memo from Head Office July 3 /PW just heard now 

Eric Blanchard Been in contact 12-Nov-19 Met w/Roger Pizony 
in December

Defered to May 2020

2182 Division 3 SE18 T6 R1 W5 - An E-mail  from Brian Hammond re culvert issues Eric Blanchard Will contact for 
detailed info

12-Jan-20 Met 0n Feb 27th Will Reassess in May 

2206 Division 3 SW15 T6 R2 W5 - Grader operator knocked down post or part of his 
fence & would like it repaired as needs to use field

Tony Tuckwood Completion at a later
date

14-Feb-20 Feb 20 temporarily fixed Defered to May 2020

2213 Division 5 SW35 T8 R3 W5 #3106 TWP8-5A Still has not received their blue sign/ordered last 
spring 

Joyce/Roland Completed 25-Feb-20 Signs are in/Waiting for map 
from development

23-Apr-20

2230 Division 1 SW21 T4 R29 W4 #4315 RR29-4 Damaged culver (grader oops) to be repaired To Do List Culvert repair 20-Mar-20 For Spring Defered June 2020

2247 Division 4 SW25 T8 R29 W4 - Culvert Problem Bob Salmon On culvert list 07-Apr-20 Authorized to put pit run
their approach

14-Apr-20

2249 Lundbreck 452 Patton Ave - has water on his lawn RQ if we could plow 
alley to help 

BobS/Eric Checking it out 08-Apr-20 Alley has been plowed 09-Apr-20

2250 Division 3 SE6 T7 R1 W5 #7002 RR1-5 Blocked culvert top of approach Tony Tuckwood To be cleaned /Sinnott 08-Apr-20 - 13-Apr-20

2251 Division 4 NE27 T8 R1 W5 - Blocked Culvert/water flowing wrong way John In progress 09-Apr-20 Waiting for 1st Call

2252 Division3 SE34 T5 R2 W5 - Fence Repair Notch Road Eric Blanchard Met on April 14 2020 09-Apr-20 Agreed to meet in 2 week to re-
assess

2253 Division 4 - Road Use Agreement for Waldren Pit Eric Blanchard Completed 13-Apr-20 Draft sent April 15 20-Apr-20

2254 Division 5 NW16 T7 R1 W5 #7229 RR2-4 Water flowing up from barricades/Lundbreck Falls Eric/John Completed 14-Apr-20 - 20-Apr-20

2255 Division 3 NW12 T5 R2 W5 - Road needs a plow Tony Tuckwood Completed 15-Apr-20 NA 15-Apr-20

2256 Division 4 NE6 T8 R1 W5 - Road washing out wanting gravel to fix it John In progress 15-Apr-20 went to visit site April 16 Need 
drying and grading

2257 Lundbreck - - wanting to build a garage/Granny Suite Roland senr Email 15-Apr-20 Left w/Roland 15-Apr-20

2258 Division 4 SW7 T8 R1 W5 #1521 Twp 8-2 Road north of Cowley by glider strip Brian Completed 16-Apr-20 NA 16-Apr-20

2259 Division 1 NW17 T3 R29 W4 #3227 RR29-5 RQ to have driveway plowed Rod Nelson On the list 16-Apr-20 - 17-Apr-20

2260 Lundbreck - RQ to grade trailor park Davw Sekella Completed 17-Apr-20 - 17-Apr-20

2261 Division 3 SE14 T6 R2 W5 - Big hole and mud @ dead stock bin 507 Eric/Brad Completed 17-Apr-20 Shape mud hole on Friday, will 
add gravel Monday 

21-Apr-20

2262 Division 1 SE35 t4 R30 W4 - Looking for Compemsation to rebuild fence Eric Blanchard Will go visit site and look at 
policies

20-Apr-20 Visited site on the 22nd 

2263 Division 2 #1 Lowland Heights East side of gate
Vehicle accident damaged culvert Needs advice
re insurance 

Eric Blanchard In progress 20-Apr-20 Spoke to her on April 23rd 

2264 Division 5 NW32 T9 R2 W5 Willow Valley By old major culvert repair site Water issue John/Dave Being investigated 21-Apr-20 Need steamer/Sinnot

2265 Division 1 SW5 T4 R29 W4 #4009 RR29-5 Plugged Culvert RR29-5 Eric Blanchard to be completed 21-Apr-20 Spoke to him on April 23rd

2266 Division 2 Pincher Station - New employee has questions: RQ to MD Eric Blanchard Completed 22-Apr-20 Talked to him on the phone 22-Apr-20

2267 Division 3 Beaver Mines 7th Street Would like gravel on the street Eric Blanchard Will call him 22-Apr-20 Will action when it dries

2268 Division 3 NW3 T7 R1 W5 #7019 RR1-3 Asking for gravel on MD RR1-3 Eric Blanchard To Access 22-Apr-20 Will look at it April 24th

2269 Division 3 Gladstone Road - Rough road sign need to be move toward stanley 
fisher

Eric/Don Completed 22-Apr-20 23-Apr-20



2020-04-23

40 NAME PHONE NUMBER DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH 
NUMBER 

CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UP
DATE

COMPLETION DATE

2270 Lundbreck Patton Park - Graffiti in Baseball Diamonds dugouts Eric/Bob S In progress 21-Apr-20 Bob to look at it April 23rd

2271 Division 1 Twp Rd. 4-0 - Road need grading/Poor condition Eric/Rod N In Progress 23-Apr-20
Working on  road today, need 

confirmation before marked as 
completed

Indicates  Defered 

indicates On the To Do List  

Indicates Completed 



AES, April, 2020 

• April 1 – 3, Resumes and Interviews
• April 3, shop work, safety (SDS’s)
• April 6 – 8, spray units’ & shop maintenance, cleaning, prep etc.
• April 6 – 9, working on administrative equipment (computers, tablets, GIS, Spots etc.)
• April 10, Easter Friday STAT
• April 13, Easter Monday STAT
• April 14 – 17, Resumes, Interviews, Hiring
• April 14 – 17, working on equipment
• April 14, meeting with CNP
• April 15, ASB Meeting, ASB funding webinar
• April 16, records and mapping, safety (truck kits)
• April 17, vacation day
• April 20, orientation and safety for first crew member
• April 21, 22, interviews and hiring
• April 21 – 24, snow gone, gophers in Lundbreck
• April 21 – 24, equipment and facilities prep
• April 22 – 24, reporting, funding documents
• April 22, provincial ASB webinar
• April 23, South-West Invasives Managers (SWIM) meeting
• April 24, dams, reporting
• April 27 – 31, equipment and facilities prep
• April 28, go over rental equipment procedures
• April 29, deadstock (bin assessments, reporting, etc.)
• April 29 – 31, getting safety documents ready and available for crew in May
• April 30, crew work/training schedule for May
• April 31, equipment prep (ready for use prep)

Sincerely,  

Shane Poulsen, 
Agricultural Fieldman 

G2a



G3a



















































G3b



















G4a



essential service workers during the COVID-19 pandemic.  Our doors will be open this
Wednesday, April 22, 2020.

Canyon Creek Childcare has also been chosen to offer school age care; opening date is yet to
be determined.

We will be playing a critical role in providing child care to Albertans through this challenging
time. Thank you to the school divisions Holy Spirit and Livingston Range for your support in
this important endeavour. A big shout out to Stephanie, Kaylee and their childcare teams for
their willingness in supporting their community in this way.

The Ministerial Order signed by Honourable Rebecca Schulz, Minister of Children’s Services,
allows selected programs to re-open to provide child care for essential service workers.
However, there are several conditions these programs must meet as directed by Alberta’s
Chief Medical Officer of Health and Alberta Health. These conditions are in place to prevent
the spread and risk of contracting an illness, and include:

A maximum program occupancy of 30 (including staff and children), with a maximum
room capacity of 10 staff and        children at any one time;
Any child, staff or parent must not enter the child care space if they are sick;
Programs must adhere to frequent thorough cleaning and hand-washing guidelines;
Strict guidelines for food handling;
No non-essential visitors and no volunteers at the program; and
Adherence to social distancing practices.

The team will be meeting with Michael Swystun (Health) at 2:00pm today to ensure
all regulations and expectations are met as well as looking at ways to go above and beyond to
keep themselves and the children and families safe.

The Ministry will be notifying employers in the community of the opening of the Centres. We
will also be letting the community know of this new development.

Please let me know if you have any questions at this time.

La Vonne Rideout
Director of Community Services
Town of Pincher Creek
community@pinchercreek.ca
403-627-4322 (w)
403-894-2074 ©

Subject: Childcare Opening

Hello Everyone,

I am excited to report that Pincher Creek Community Early Learning Centre has been chosen 
by the Ministry to re-open our child care program (children 0-6 years of age) to support

H2a

mailto:community@pinchercreek.ca


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 7 

MINUTES ‐ 2  (2020) 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, February 13, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

ORRSC Boardroom (3105 ‐ 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge) 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 

Gordon Wolstenholme ‐ Chair   Ian Sundquist 
Jim Bester ‐ Vice‐Chair (absent)  Jennifer Crowson 
Don Anderberg (absent)  Margaret Plumtree  
Doug MacPherson

STAFF: 

Lenze Kuiper – Director  Barb Johnson – Executive Secretary 

AGENDA: 

1. Approval of Agenda – February 13, 2020 ...............................................................................................  

2. Approval of Minutes – January 9, 2020 .............................................................................. (attachment) 

3. Business Arising from the Minutes

4. New Business
(a) Annual Report – Chair’s Message .................................................................................... (handout) 
(b) Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Training ....................................................................  
(c) Assessment Review Board Training ................................................................................................  
(d) GIS Update .......................................................................................................................................  
(e) Membership Update .......................................................................................................................  
(f) Subdivision Statistics .................................................................................................... (attachment) 
(g) Fee For Service Update ................................................................................................ (attachment) 

5. Accounts
(a) Office Accounts – January 2020

6. Director’s Report ....................................................................................................................................  

7. Executive Report.....................................................................................................................................  

8. Adjournment ..........................................................................................................................................  

OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION

H2b



 

2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 8 

 

 
 
CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:03 P.M. 

1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 

THAT the Executive Committee approve the agenda, as presented.  CARRIED 

2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Moved by:  Jennifer Crowson 

THAT the Executive Committee approve the minutes of January 9, 2020, as presented.  CARRIED 

3.  BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

 None. 

4.  NEW BUSINESS 

(a)  Annual Report – Chair’s Message 

 The previous title of the Annual Report ‘CHAIR’S MESSAGE’ has been changed to ‘MESSAGE 
FROM THE CHAIR AND DIRECTOR’.  The message that will appear in the 2019 Annual Report 
was handed out and reviewed. 

(b)  Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Training 

 During  2019,  a  total  of  16  appeals  were  heard  by  the  new  Chinook  Intermunicipal 
Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.   ORRSC will host a training session for Board 
members on Friday, February 28, 2020 in our office. 

(c)  Assessment Review Board Training 

 The ORRSC  Regional  Assessment  Review  Board  is  down  to  a  very  small  pool  of  trained 
members to draw from.  A 3‐day new member training session will be held on April 21‐23, 
2020 and notices for this course will go out shortly.  A few discrepancies in our bylaws were 
pointed out during the audits of some of our smaller communities, therefore, some minor 
changes may need to be made before the 2020 session begins. 

(d)  GIS Update 

 A grant application in the amount of $96,000 has been submitted to offset the cost of the 
GIS  Enhancement  Project  (software  provided  by  ESRI).    The  Town  of  Coaldale  is  the 
sponsoring municipality for the grant on behalf of 43 municipalities included in the project.  



 

2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 9 

The Town of Pincher Creek is the pilot site and testing is nearing completion by the end of 
February 2020. 

(e)  Membership Update 

 The  Town  of  Granum  dissolution  became  effective  on  February  1,  2020  and  the 
municipality has been absorbed in to the M.D. of Willow Creek. 

 A letter dated February 4, 2020 to the Town of Coaldale requesting an audience with their 
council to discuss the value and benefit of remaining a member of ORRSC has received no 
response to date. 

 Director Lenze Kuiper delivered a letter to the County of Newell requesting a meeting with 
council on February 6, 2020 to discuss their notice  to terminate membership.   A  letter of 
response  dated  February  10,  2020  stated  their  normal  procedure  with  any  contracted 
consultants and service providers is to work out details of contracted services with staff and 
administration rather than council.   

Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 

THAT  the  Executive  Committee  accept  the  termination  of  the  Planning  Services Agreement 
with the County of Newell and work to make the transition by September 1, 2020.  CARRIED 

(f)  Subdivision Statistics 

 27 subdivision applications were received in January 2020 with revenue totalling $37,840. 

(g)  Fee For Service Update 

 Staff are working hard to complete most of the Intermunicipal Development Plans by April 
1, 2020. 

5.  ACCOUNTS 

(a)  Office Accounts – January 2020 
 
  5150    Staff Mileage  .................................................   Lenze Kuiper  ...........................................  $      312.00

  5150    Staff Mileage  .................................................   Lenze Kuiper  ...........................................  83.00

  5280    Janitorial Services  ..........................................   Madison Ave Business Services  ..............  425.00

  5310    Telephone  .....................................................   Bell Mobility  ...........................................  590.84

  5310    Telephone  .....................................................   Shaw Business  ........................................  189.95

  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   CPAA  .......................................................  250.00

  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   ADOA  ......................................................  125.00

  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   Municipal World  .....................................  164.60

  5380    Printing & Printing Supplies  ...........................   Pitney Bowes  ..........................................  19.98

  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Pitney Bowes  ..........................................  231.98

  5380    Printing & Printing Supplies  ...........................   Lethbridge Mobile Shredding  .................  23.00

  5440    Land Titles Office  ...........................................   Minister of Finance  ................................  126.00

  5470    Computer Software  .......................................   Whipcord  ................................................  1,262.80

  5470    Computer Software  .......................................   ESRI    9,450.00



 

2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 10 

  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Xerox  ......................................................  1,040.71

  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Digitex  ....................................................  720.00

  1160    GST Receivable  ..............................................   GST Receivable  .......................................  683.83

 
        TOTAL  $15,698.69

 
Moved by:  Margaret Plumtree 

THAT  the  Executive  Committee  approve  the  Office  Accounts  of  January  2020  ($15,698.69),  as 
presented.  CARRIED 

6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 The Director reported on his activities since the last Executive Committee meeting. 

7.  EXECUTIVE REPORT 

 Committee  members  reported  on  various  projects  and  activities  in  their  respective 
municipalities. 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 

 No Executive Committee meeting will be held in March. 

Moved by:  Gordon Wolstenholme 

THAT we adjourn  the  regular meeting of  the Executive Committee of  the Oldman River Regional 
Services Commission at 7:25 p.m. until Thursday, April 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.  CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
/bj    CHAIR:  _____________________________________   
 



Government of Alberta Announces COVID-19 Matching Donation Program

The Community Foundation is happy to announce it has been selected to participate in
the Government of Alberta’s new Charitable Giving Matching Donation Program. Starting
April 15 and ending May 31, the Alberta government will match, dollar-for-dollar,
donations up to 2 million dollars to the existing fundraising initiatives of seven Alberta
charities responding to the COVID-19 pandemic, including the Community Foundation of
Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta’s COVID-19 Response and Recovery Grants
Program. Matching funds depend on the collective amount raised by participating charities
and the amount available from the government.

We acknowledge that this is a difficult time and that many Albertans are experiencing
financial hardship. However, if you are in a position to donate, we ask that you consider
working with us to leverage your gift to bring additional dollars in to support our
community. Your gift is eligible for a tax receipt and it will not be subject to administration
fees. Donations made specific to the COVID-19 Response and Recovery Grants Program
will go right back out to support the community; they will not be added to our permanent
endowment fund.

If you are interested in supporting the COVID-19 grants program, please contact
Executive Director Charleen Davidson at cdavidson@cflsa.ca or 403-328-5297. You can
also donate online through the Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern
Alberta’s listing on CanadaHelps.org—choose “COVID-19 Response and Recovery” from
the funds listed. 

For most of us, this is an unprecedented moment in our lives. We do not know how or
when this pandemic will end. We do know, however, that Southwestern Albertans have a
long history of charitable giving, especially in times of difficulty. Participating in the
Government of Alberta’s matching donations program is a great way to leverage donor
dollars to make an even greater impact on the well-being of our community. We thank you
for your ongoing support of the community through our work.

While our office remains closed at this time, our team is hard at work from home so that
we can continue to serve you. Please do not hesitate to contact us at the following email
addresses if we can be of any assistance to you:

Charleen Davidson, Executive Director: cdavidson@cflsa.ca
Caitlin Gajdostik, Grants Coordinator: grants@cflsa.ca
Kaitlynn Weaver, Community Knowledge Coordinator: research@cflsa.ca

For more information on the Government of Alberta’s Matching Charitable Donation
Program, please click here.

Community Foundation of Lethbridge and Southwestern Alberta | 1202 2nd Ave S Unit 50,
Lethbridge, Alberta T1J 0E3 Canada

H2c

http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001kxXnvSINl2E728tPYR8RQD_S9DKHoettD3GDY8CW8fdHHxE5COemyoSaGN8ZN7vJz7OdMxXBLiDkXxvY-AprVCyDjsmnTSxZd4__lSZNNIdLtoqK__-KpYUCYBa3mUC_UQvqYdglb1ggsZRldoYJrlzneGrlfFK19wx63IWyI3gie3Fznintwls68PtJBbvK2cg8rYB7SZY=&c=AHMTbeAs13Aj5Uu2Sqj8BHmIKMCNkei8mGrg7oADTJ-MXBLznNq65A==&ch=XBWN9TV3Vlp9Y4VjV0B4W27cAbTYju7SP-umBcUWwfb_02Da37dkfA==
mailto:cdavidson@cflsa.ca
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001kxXnvSINl2E728tPYR8RQD_S9DKHoettD3GDY8CW8fdHHxE5COemyoSaGN8ZN7vJ78aHwkKfPqLN1cz0p_w0cDtRtJfim9bd_U-d87vyRBX8hWbasKhX7NUCEl9L4Y7i-bedTfXzuC3OnHy7ereoYpLlrDkMqGNEC3QbbQAg8pKlQGS_9SP9ul5fN_OCAk7kspg0AyEZ0TiO4v8vyGD6ID0GeLbUWnxkBY2XSLuYZ7knqcxbrUPLkfFH-U-ZnHi0ngeqUMEmcpCREo279I4vSmYUQKBxu9xZJxrkBE4rH2abpyI5ZIHk49pSCY8skOt28JOf-rDI3T4=&c=AHMTbeAs13Aj5Uu2Sqj8BHmIKMCNkei8mGrg7oADTJ-MXBLznNq65A==&ch=XBWN9TV3Vlp9Y4VjV0B4W27cAbTYju7SP-umBcUWwfb_02Da37dkfA==
mailto:cdavidson@cflsa.ca
mailto:grants@cflsa.ca
mailto:research@cflsa.ca
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001kxXnvSINl2E728tPYR8RQD_S9DKHoettD3GDY8CW8fdHHxE5COemyoSaGN8ZN7vJz7OdMxXBLiDkXxvY-AprVCyDjsmnTSxZd4__lSZNNIdLtoqK__-KpYUCYBa3mUC_UQvqYdglb1ggsZRldoYJrlzneGrlfFK19wx63IWyI3gie3Fznintwls68PtJBbvK2cg8rYB7SZY=&c=AHMTbeAs13Aj5Uu2Sqj8BHmIKMCNkei8mGrg7oADTJ-MXBLznNq65A==&ch=XBWN9TV3Vlp9Y4VjV0B4W27cAbTYju7SP-umBcUWwfb_02Da37dkfA==


Councils across the province. We are providing an update on the changes so you understand
particularly how this affects timelines for subdivision, development and appeals. 

As we know the government’s previous approach was to extend most timelines in the
Municipal Government Act until October 1, 2020. This had the unintended consequence of
delaying development permits and subdivisions because the appeal period was left open until
October 1, 2020. 

With Ministerial Order 036/20 Municipal Affairs has returned most timelines (except for some
deadlines for providing routine information), back to the standard deadlines in the MGA. This
means that we should now be going back to the regular timelines in the MGA for processing
subdivisions and development permits, and for determining appeal deadlines. 

For application processes starting after April 17, 2020 use the standard timelines and
deadlines within the MGA.

As a transition, application processes that began or ended between March 25, 2020 to April
17, 2020 should use the date of April 17, 2020 as the starting point for the timeline: 

· Example 1 - You received a development permit application on April 1, 2020. Typically
you would have until April 20, 2020 to deem the application complete, as per Section
683.1 of the MGA. Now you have until May 7, 2020 to determine if it is complete
because April 17, 2020 is the starting point.

· Example 2 - The decision on an approved subdivision was mailed out on March 25,
2020. Typically an appeal would have had to be made before April 14, 2020, 14 days
after receipt of the written decision as per Section 678(2) of the MGA (5 days added
for mailing). Now an appeal could be made up until May 1, 2020 (14 days after April
17, 2020).

Do not hesitate to reach out to your respective ORRSC Planner if you have any questions or
require guidance on interpreting a specific development timeline question.

Lenze Kuiper, Director
Oldman River Regional Services Commission
p:  (403) 329-1344
e:   lenzekuiper@orrsc.com
w:  www.orrsc.com

UPDATE

RE: Ministerial Order 036/20 (Rescinding MO 022/20) issued on Friday, April 17, 2020

Last Friday evening, Municipal Affairs sent out a letter and two new Ministerial Orders to

H2d

mailto:lenzekuiper@orrsc.com
http://www.orrsc.com/

	A 2020-04-28 Council Agenda
	B Business Recovery Support Program Pincher Creek
	C1 2020-04-14 Council Committee Meeting Minutes
	C2 2020-04-14 Council Meeting MinutesDraft
	F1c 2020-03-04 ASB Minutes
	G1a Operations Report
	G1a2 Operations Report
	G1a Work Order  for Council April 28 2020 meeting - UPDATED

	G2a AES April 2020
	G3a 2019 Financial Statements
	G3b Funding for Recreations Study with Town of Pincher Creek
	G4a CAO Report
	H2a Childcare Opening
	H2b ORRSC Executive Minutes - February 13 2020
	H2c Government of Alberta Announces COVID 19 Program
	H2d Ministerial Order 036_20 (Rescinding MO 022_20) issued on Friday, April 17, 2020



